
City of Norwood Young America - City Council Agenda 
March 27, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. Work Session; followed by EDA / City Council Meetings 

 
      1.   Call Meeting of City Council Work Session to Order 
               

2. Approve Agenda 
2.1  Willkommen Memorial Park Restrooms Project 

 
3. Adjournment 
 

 
      1.   Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 
              1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 
      

2. Approve Agenda 
   2.1 Approve minutes of February 27, 2017 

 
3. Adjournment 
 

      
1. Call Meeting of City Council to Order 
 
2.   Approve Agenda 
 
3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment (Individuals may address the City 

Council about any non-agenda item of concern.  Speakers must state their name, address, and limit their remarks to three 
minutes.  The City Council will not take official action on these items, but may refer the matter to staff for a future report or direct 
that the matter be scheduled for a future meeting agenda.) 

a) Carver County Sheriff’s Office Annual Report -  Sheriff Olson and Commander Tschida  
 

4.   Consent Agenda (NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: All those items listed as part of the Consent Agenda will be approved by a single 
motion, unless a request to discuss one of those items is made prior to that time.  Anyone present at the meeting may request an 
item to be removed from the consent agenda.  Please  inform the Council when they approve the agenda for this meeting.)      
4.1 Approve minutes of March 13, 2017 meeting 
4.2 Approve payment of claims 
4.3 Approve Countryside Veterinary Clinic – Animal Impound Contract 
4.4 Approve authorization to advertise for full-time Public Service Technician  
4.5 Accept Hay Baling Bid 
4.6 Approve Pavilion Liquor License – Pour House Pub 
4.7 Approve authorization to advertise for Public Service Seasonal Worker  

 
5.   Public Hearings 
  
6. Old Business 

 
7.   New Business 

7.1   Resolution 2017-07, Scheduling Public Hearing to consider Vacation of part of Liberty Street  
7.2   Resolution 2017-08, CUP 180 Industrial Blvd., Auto Sales/Display  
7.3   Resolution 2017-09, IUP 508 Merger Street, Outdoor Storage 
7.4   Ordinance No. 285, Amendment to allow Animal Care in the C-2, C-3, & B-I Districts  
7.5   Resolution 2017-10, Outlot A, The Preserve 3rd Addition Formal Plan 
7.6   Lawn Mowing Cemeteries – Bid Results 
7.7   Schedule Special Meeting for Comprehensive Plan Proposals Interviews 

 
8. Council Member & Mayor Reports 
 
9.   Adjournment 

 
The following informational items have been included in the Council packet for informational purposes, council review and discussion.  
No action is required by the City Council:   
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS 
April 10 City Council – 6:00 p.m.  
April 12 EDC – 6:30 p.m. 
April 13 Senior Advisory Committee – 9:00 a.m. 
April 18  Parks and Rec. Commission – 5:30 p.m./Planning Commission – 7:00 p.m. 
April 24 City Council Work Session – 6:00 p.m.; EDA and City Council to follow  



City of Norwood Young America 

Economic Development Authority Minutes 

February 27, 2017 – 7:00pm – City Hall Council Chambers 
 

Members Present:  Craig Heher, Carol Lagergren, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz, Charlie Storms 
City Staff Present:  City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Kelly Hayes, Public Works Director Brent Aretz 

Others Present:  Tom Sudheimer, Adam Glander, Cathy Storms 

 
      

1. Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 

Meeting was called to order by President Carol Lagergren at 7:00pm. 

              1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 
      

2. Approve Agenda 

Amend the agenda with addition of 2.05 Oath of Office of Charlie Storms. 

Motion:  McPadden to approve the agenda with the change.  Second Stolz.  All in favor, motion carried. 

 

 2.05 Oath of Office of Charlie Storms 

 

2.1 Approve minutes of January 23, 2017 

Motion:  Stolz to approve the minutes of January 23, 2017.  Second McPadden.  All in favor, motion carried. 
 

3. Adjournment 

Motion:  McPadden to adjourn at 7:05pm.  Second Heher.  All in favor, motion carried. 

  

  

Sincerely Submitted: 

 

        

______________________________________ 

Kelly Hayes, City Clerk/Treasurer  

       ____________________________________ 

       President 

 



City of Norwood Young America 

City Council Minutes 

March 13, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. – City Hall Council Chambers 
 

Members Present:  Craig Heher, Carol Lagergren, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz, Charlie Storms 
City Staff Present:  City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Kelly Hayes, City Attorney Jay Squires 

Others Present:  Jessica Klaustermeier, John Gamades, LaVonne Kroells, Sharilyn Feltmann, Erik Loomis, Scott 

Loomis, Perry Forst, Mark Lagergren 

 

       1.   Call Meeting of City Council to Order 

      1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 

 Meeting was called to order by Mayor Lagergren at 6:00pm. 

 

2.   Approve Agenda 

Motion: McPadden to approve the agenda.  Second Heher.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

  

3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment  

Lavonne Kroells from Willkommen Heritage annual report.  Hours are Thursday, Friday, Saturday from 

10am – Noon.  Call Lavonne if you have a group that wants to attend at a different day/time.  Currently 

working on baseball display that will be up through Stiftungsfest.  Military display – always looking for 

pictures/names of service men and women from the area.   

 

Scott Loomis with Loomis Homes is requesting to have trunk fees (fees to hook up to City water/sewer) 

reduced for the Preserve townhome development which has been stagnant for quite a while.  Trunk 

fees are approximately $78,000 for four units. 

 

4.   Consent Agenda       

4.1 Approve minutes of February 27, 2017 meetings 

4.2 Approve payment of claims 

4.3 Approve 2017 Lawn Abatement Contract with Dave’s Season-All 

4.4 Approve resignation of Fire Fighter Matthew Smith   

Helget had correction on minutes from February 27, 2017 to change name of the person that 

came to discuss the Ironman Bike Ride; his name is Jon Ridge.   

Motion:  Stolz to approve the consent agenda with the correction.  Second Storms.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

5.   Public Hearings 

5.1 Ordinance No. 284,  Amending Chapter 7 to remove No Parking Restriction on Brush Street 

Request was made from property owner to remove the No Parking restriction on the east side of 

Brush Street.   

There was no public comment. 

Motion:  Stolz to close the public hearing.  Second McPadden.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried.   

       

6. Old Business 

 6.1    The Harbor Bus Grant – FY 2016 Certifications and Assurances 

City Attorney reviewed.  It is a requirement of the grant to designate someone as the authorized 

representative of the City.  Bus will be here in April. 

Motion:  Heher to authorize the City Administrator to execute the FTA Fiscal Year 2016 Certification and 

Assurance.  Second McPadden.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

7. New Business 

7.1   City Branding & Marketing 

John Gamades and Jessica Klaustermeier from Orangeball gave a presentation on the process of 

developing the new City logo and tagline.   

Motion:  McPadden to approve the new City of Norwood Young America Logo and Tagline.  Second Stolz.  

Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

7.2   2017 Goals & Objectives 

A member from each City Commission/Committee gave the 2017 goals (see packet for the goals). 

Sharilyn Feltmann – Parks & Recreation Commission 

LaVonne Kroells - Senior Advisory Committee 



Craig Heher – Planning Commission 

Steve Helget – Economic Development Commission 

 

7.3   Resolution 2017-06, Carver County Transportation Sales Tax 

Carver County representatives Jim Ische and Lyndon Robjent gave a presentation at the last City 

Council meeting proposing a Transportation Sales Tax. 

Motion: Storms to approve Resolution 2017-06, A Resolution Supporting Increasing Transportation Revenue in 

Carver County using the Local Option Sales Tax and Wheelage Tax.  Second Stolz.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

7.4   Ordinance No. 284, Amending Chapter 7, to remove No Parking Restriction on Brush Street  

Motion:  Stolz to adopt Ordinance No. 284, Amending Chapter 7, to remove No Parking Restriction on Brush 

Street.  Second McPadden.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

Motion:  Stolz to approve the publishing of the summary statement of Ordinance No. 284.  Second Heher.  Vote 

5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

7.5   Special Meeting – Joint meeting Planning Commission, EDC, & Chamber of Commerce Board 

Motion:  Heher to schedule a special City Council meeting for 6:30pm, April 19, 2017. Second McPadden.  Vote 

5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

8.   Council Member’s Reports 

Heher - Planning working on Rental Housing Code. 

McPadden – EDC recommended new logo.   

Stolz – Senior Advisory discussed goals and bus. 

Storms – first Park meeting is next Tuesday. 

 

9.   Mayor’s Report 

Attended Respectful Workplace training that was held last week for supervisors and fire department.  

Personnel reviewed applications for Custodian position.  Will continue to accept applications through 

the end of March.  Interviews the beginning of April.  Will be meeting with MN Dot on Friday to discuss 

212 underpass and resurfacing. 

 

10. Closed Meeting 

Motion: McPadden to close the meeting to discuss preliminary charges/allegations of an individual according 

to MN Statue 13D.05 Subdivision 2b.  Second Heher.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

Following the closed meeting 

Motion:  Heher to terminate the employment of Kevin Frahm immediately.  Second McPadden.  Vote 5 – 0.  

Motion carried. 

 

      11.  Adjournment 

Motion:  McPadden to adjourn at 8:07pm.  Second Heher.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

  

UPCOMING EVENTS 

March 17 Highway 212, SW Corridor Transportation Coalition – 7:30am Chaska 

March 21  Parks and Rec. Commission – 5:30pm; Planning Commission 7:00pm 

March 27  City Council Work Session, EDA and City Council – 6:00pm 

April 12 Safety Committee – 1:30pm 

April 12  Economic Development Commission – 6:30pm 

April 13  Senior Advisory Committee – 9:00am 

 

Sincerely Submitted: 

 

        

______________________________________ 

Kelly Hayes, City Clerk/Treasurer  

       ____________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

 

 

































       City of Norwood Young America                   

310 West Elm Street, PO Box 59 

Norwood Young America, MN 55368 

www.cityofnya.com 

952/467-1800 
 

 

 

 

 
TO: Mayor Lagergren and Council Members 

 

FROM: Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 

 

DATE: March 27, 2017 

 

RE: Public Service Technician 

 

 

With the termination of a Public Service Technician at the City Council meeting 

on March 13, 2017, it is recommended that we post and accept applications for 

this position. 

 

Anticipated Timeline (dates are approximate) 

 March 28 Post the position and start to accept applications 

 April 17 Application deadline 

 April 20 Interview top candidates 

 April 24 Make recommendation to City Council 

 May 15 Public Service Technician start date 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

A motion to accept applications for a Public Service Technician. 

 











       City of Norwood Young America                   

310 West Elm Street, PO Box 59 

Norwood Young America, MN 55368 

www.cityofnya.com 

952/467-1800 
 

 

 

 

 
TO: Mayor Lagergren and Council Members 

 

FROM: Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 

 

DATE: March 27, 2017 

 

RE: Public Service Worker - Seasonal 

 

 

Each year the City hires seasonal employees to assist with mowing, painting, 

road maintenance and other miscellaneous tasks in the Public Service 

Department.  It is recommended to accept applications for a Public Service 

Worker. 

 

Anticipated Timeline (dates are approximate) 

 March 28 Post the position and start to accept applications 

 April 17 Application deadline 

 April 20 Interview top candidates 

 April 24 Make recommendation to City Council 

 May 15 Public Service Technician start date 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

A motion to post and accept applications for a Public Service Worker. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
 Members of the City Council 

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner 
 
Date: March 27, 2017 
 
Re: Wigfield, Teply, Hurst: Vacation of portion of Liberty Street   
 

 
 
Applicants:   Andy and Julie Wigfield (Purchaser) 
    Seth Teply (Property Owner) 
    Daniel Hurst (Property Owner) 
     
Subject Property Address: 524 Elm Street West 
 
Legal Description: See Attached 
 
Property ID: 580500720 
 
Zoning Class: R-3 Medium Density Mixed Residential 
 
Request: Call for public hearing regarding: Vacation of a portion of an unimproved 

street (Liberty Street) right of way to accommodate an existing attached 
garage constructed in the ROW decades previously. 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
A section of unimproved Liberty Street lies between Elm Street West and the railway in the 500 Block of Elm 
Street West. The public street segment is approximately 66 feet in width and 450 feet in length. An east-west 
public alley intersects Liberty Street approximately 125 feet north of Elm Street West.  
 
The holder of a purchase agreement and the fee owners at 524 Elm Street West and adjacent property owners 
Peter and Michelle Luskey and Marilyn Franck have petitioned for a partial vacation of the eastern half of 
Liberty Street. The partial vacation would accommodate an attached garage which is located in the public right 
of way. 
 
Please find attached the following: 
 

1. A petition for partial street vacation 
2. A survey and legal description of the proposed vacation 
3. An area map of the subject property  
4. Resolution calling for a public hearing 

 
 
 



Representations by Applicant: 
 

• The vacation of an approximate 1,054 sf of unimproved Progress Street (scalene triangle in shape) is 
proposed. 

• A certificate of survey has been obtained and the survey has been used to demonstrate a proposed 
partial street vacation. 

• The furthest point of projection into the unimproved right of way proposed for vacation is 17 feet 
(portion of eastern half of public street ROW and western boundary of subject lot).    

• The garage was constructed in the public easement decades ago. 
• Clear title to the subject property is not achievable but for the vacation request or removal of the 

attached garage. 
• The encroachment results from common perception in the vicinity of the property that lots in the 500 

block of Elm Street West are oriented perpendicular to Elm Street as opposed to intersecting but not 
perpendicular to the street. As a result encroachment of personal property improvements on non-fee 
owner properties are replicated throughout the vicinity.  

 
EXAMINATION OF REQUEST 
Norwood Young America is a statutory city, therefore, state statute governs vacation of easements. Although 
the request is for a partial street right of way easement vacation, the statutory process is the same. Planning 
Commission consideration is not part of the required vacation review process. The City Council is responsible 
for consideration of easement vacation requests.  
 
The City Council is to consider the attached petition and consider calling for a public hearing on the vacation 
request. When examining the petition, the City is to consider whether or not a majority of the property owners 
abutting the street vacation have signed the petition.  

 
ACTION 
A resolution calling for a public hearing on April 24th on the partial street vacation request is attached for 
consideration. 
 
  



ATTACHMENT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 













Carver County GIS, 2014 P ictometry International

²
This map was created using Carver County's Geographic Information Systems (GIS), it is  a compilation of information and data from various City, County, State, and Federal offices. This map is not a surveyed
or legally recorded map and is intended to be used as a reference. Carver County is not responsible for any  inaccuracies contained herein.

Map Date: 3/7/2017

Liberty Street

Elm Street



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
 Members of the City Council 

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Strack Consulting LLC 
 
Date: March 27, 2017 
 
Re: CUP Accessory Auto Sales/Display: 180 Industrial Boulevard  
 

 
Applicants:   Citzens State Bank (Property Owner) 

Todd Miller & Adam Glander (Property Lessee) 
 
Subject Property Address: 180 Industrial Boulevard  
 
Legal Description: N 124.29’ of Lot 2, Block 003, Young America Industrial Park  
 
Property ID: 588500102 
 
Zoning Class: B-I Business Industrial District 
 
Request: A conditional use permit to allow outdoor auto sales and display as an 

accessory use  
 
BACKGROUND 
A conditional use permit application and sketch have submitted for review by the City of Norwood Young 
America in conjunction with proposed outdoor auto sales and display as an accessory use at 180 Industrial 
Boulevard. The application materials and a map of the site are attached for consideration/information.  
 
A conditional use permit is required under §1230.11, Subd. 4 of the City Code which provides for the proposed 
use in the B-I Business Industrial District.  
 
The Applicants (i.e. Property Owner and Property Lessee) propose automobile sales/display as an accessory 
use to an existing established auto repair use.  
 
The Applicants represent: 
 

• The principal use of the property is auto repair and will remain auto repair. 
 

• The proposed accessory use is outdoor sales/display of used automobiles. 
 

• The proposed accessory use shall occupy a dedicated auto sales office within the principal structure. 
 

• No structural changes to the principal structure are proposed. 
 

• Used vehicles for sale are to occupy a portion of the parking lot in the front of the building. Additional 
overflow parking for used vehicle display sales may be stored in the rear (gravel) parking area. 



Hearing Requirements  
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the request following duly published, posted, and mailed 
notice. Please find a copy of the draft March 21, 2017 PC meeting minutes attached for information on the 
hearing. 
 
Examination of Code Requirements 
NYA City Code requirements applicable to this Conditional Use Permit Request are itemized below; consulting 
staff comments are illustrated in red bold, italic type face.  
 
1210.06 Conditional Use Permits, Subd. 3(B)(16) Requirements 
Outdoor Auto, Truck, Recreational Vehicle, Equipment Sales and Display. Outdoor auto, truck, recreational 
vehicle, equipment sales and display shall comply with the following standards: 
 

a. Shall have adequate off-street parking. The existing structure is approximately 3,600 square feet 
and is used for auto repair. Auto repair and/or sales uses require one (1) parking space for 
every five hundred (500) sf of floor area equating to seven (7) required spaces. Adequate off-
street parking appears to exist for the proposed activity, provided used car display sales do 
not occupy the required parking spaces.    

 
b. All access drives, parking and storage areas shall be surfaced with concrete or bituminous with curb 

and gutter. The existing parking lot is surfaced with bituminous and a curb is in place.  
 

c. Shall be screened from adjacent residential districts by buffer fence of adequate design or a planting 
buffer screen. There is a large wetland to the east of the subject parcel. The wetland is zoned 
for residential use, however, the natural area is subject to protection under the Wetland 
Conservation Act and, therefore, unlikely to be used for residential purposes.  
 

d. All used vehicles associated with the use shall comply with the following additional standards: These 
are proposed conditions of the CUP. 

 
i. Shall be in an operable condition. 

 
ii. Shall not be extensively damaged, with the damage including such things as broken or 

missing tires and wheels, motor, body parts, windows, drive train or transmission. 
 

iii. Shall have a fair market value greater than the approximate value of the scrap in it 
 
 
General Criteria for Approval of Conditional Use Permits 
The aforementioned standards relate specifically to outdoor auto sales/display. In addition, the Planning 
Commission is required to examine the request under a series of general standards as set for under Section 
1210.06 Conditional Use Permits, Subd. 3(A). The City Council may, as it deems necessary to protect the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the public, require additional performance standards. At a minimum the 
Planning Commission is required to examine the request as it applies to the following standards.  
 

1. The use is consistent with goals, policies and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. 
DISCUSSION: The existing and future use are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
2. The use is consistent with the intent of this Ordinance. DISCUSSION: The proposed use is an 

allowed accessory use in the B-I District under a CUP. 
 

3. The use does not have an undue adverse impact on governmental facilities, utilities, services or 
existing or proposed improvements. DISCUSSION: The proposed outdoor storage will not 
impact government facilities, utilities, services, or existing improvements. No changes to 
the existing lot, structure, or parking facility are proposed, except for striping of the 
parking lot.  



 
4. The use does not have an undue adverse impact on the public health, safety or welfare. 

DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing property, structure, or parking facility are 
proposed. 
 

5. The use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 
for the purpose already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood. DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing property, structure, or parking 
facility are proposed. 
 

6. The use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding 
property for uses permitted in the district. DISCUSSION: The proposed outdoor storage will 
not impede orderly development and improvement of surrounding properties.  

 
7. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and necessary facilities have been or will be provided. 

DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing property, structure, or parking facility are 
proposed. 
 

8. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide for vehicular and pedestrian safety 
and convenience to, from and within the site. DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing 
property, structure, or parking facility are proposed.  
 

9. The use meets all of the performance criteria requirements as established in Section 
1245.01 of this chapter. DISCUSSION: No new construction is contemplated at this time.  
 

10. The use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it 
is located. DISCUSSION: No new construction is contemplated.  

 
 
PC RECOMMENDATION: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 
The PC held a hearing on the CUP on March 21st. Following the hearing and discussion, the Commission 
approved a motion recommending the City Council approve the CUP subject to specific conditions. A draft of 
the March 21st meeting minutes are attached for reference. Proposed conditions include:  
 

1. The approved accessory use for outdoor automobile sales/display is applicable to the property at 180 
Industrial Boulevard. 
 

2. A maximum of forty (40) vehicles may be stored outdoors on the site at one time, including those being 
repaired and those for sale. At least seven (7) parking spaces in the parking lot in front of the building 
shall be reserved for customer parking.  
 

3. All used vehicles associated with the used automobile sales/display shall comply with the following 
standards:  
 

i. Shall be in an operable condition. 
 

ii. Shall not be extensively damaged, with the damage including such things as broken or 
missing tires and wheels, motor, body parts, windows, drive train or transmission. 
 

iii. Shall have a fair market value greater than the approximate value of the scrap in it 
 

4. Used automobiles on sale and display are limited to passenger automobiles. Commercial weight 
vehicles, agricultural equipment, trailers, recreational vehicles, sport utility vehicles, non-motorized 
items and the like are prohibited.  
 



5. All parking for the principal and accessory use shall occur off-street. Additional overflow parking for 
used vehicle display sales may occur in the rear (gravel) parking area. 
 

6. The Applicant or Property Owner shall supply the City evidence of an auto dealer’s license.  
 

7. Any signage shall require issuance of a sign permit. 
 

8. Any changes to outdoor lighting shall require approval from the City.  
 

9. This approval shall expire one year after date of approval unless the Applicants have commenced 
operation of the Use on-site.  
 

10. This permit is subject to all applicable codes, regulations and ordinances, and violation thereof shall 
be grounds for revocation. 
 

11. The permit shall be subject to annual inspection and audit by the City.  
 

12. The City may revoke the CUP upon violation of the conditional use permit standards in the Zoning 
Ordinance or violation of the conditions of this resolution, subject to the requirements of Section 
1210.06, Subd. 5 “Revocation of Conditional Use Permits” of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

13. The conditional use permitted under this Resolution shall be revoked if the Use ceases for more than 
12 consecutive months. 
 

ACTION 
Consideration of the CUP request is kindly requested. A sample RESOLUTION is attached for consideration. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Planning Commission (draft) minutes 
• CUP Application 
• Sample Resolution   

 



Page 2 of 11 
 

 
A. Conditional Use Permit: Accessory Auto Sales and Display at 180 Industrial Boulevard  

 
Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:09 p.m.  
 
Strack stated Citizens State Bank as the Property Owner and Todd Miller as the property 
lessee have applied for a conditional use permit to operate an accessory auto sales and 
display operation at 180 Industrial Boulevard. Miller proposes to operate the auto 
dealership; the principal use of the site is auto repair.  

 
A conditional use permit is required under §1230.11, Subd. 4 of the City Code which 
provides for the proposed use in the B-I Business Industrial District.  

 
The Applicants represent: 

 
The principal use of the property is auto repair and will remain auto repair. 
 
The proposed accessory use is outdoor sales/display of used automobiles. 
 
The proposed accessory use shall occupy a dedicated auto sales office within the 
principal structure. 
 
No structural changes to the principal structure are proposed. 
 
Used vehicles for sale are to occupy a portion of the parking lot in the front of the 
building. Additional overflow parking for used vehicle display sales may be stored 
in the rear (gravel) parking area. 

 
A notice of the public hearing was published, posted, and mailed. No comments have been 
received.  
 
Heher inquired of Strack if she was suggesting a maximum of 15 vehicles be stored on site. 
Strack noted that number is a placeholder, but the suggestion is rooted in limiting the 
number of autos allowed on site.  
 
Todd Miller opined the proposed amount of vehicles (15) was too low and suggested forty 
would be a more realistic volume of vehicles to be housed on site. 
 
Kemp inquired as to whether or not Miller had considered fencing/screening adjacent to 
the existing trail abutting the rear yard. Miller opined additional fencing or screening was 
not realistic. 
 
Lagergren inquired as to where autos would be stored. Miller referenced an illustration 
included in the packet.   
 



Page 3 of 11 
 

Lagergren asked Miller how many cars he anticipated would be housed on site. Miller 
suggested 40 automobiles. Lagergren inquired as to how many vehicles could be parked in 
the existing lot to the front of the building. Schlechter estimated 25 stalls.  
 
Strack stated off-street parking stall requirements for auto dealer and repair shops apply as 
well. 
 
Kemp inquired as to whether or not a previous site plan illustrating the number of parking 
spots available in front of the building existed. Strack noted she was not aware of one, she 
further stated that based on stall size and aisle width requirements the front parking lot area 
could accommodate an estimated 15 parking spaces.  
 
Miller suggested he would likely park five used cars in the front parking lot and store the 
remainder in the rear yard.  
 
Heher asked for other comments for or against the proposed conditional use permit.   

 
Motion – Grundahl, Second Kemp to close the public hearing at 7:20 p.m. Approved 5-0.  
 
 

B. Interim Use Permit: Outdoor Storage at 508 Merger Street  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:21 p.m.   
 
Strack noted Joel Buettenhoff (Property Owner) and Tim Conyard (Lessee) have applied 
for an interim use permit in conjunction with proposed outdoor storage at 508 North 
Merger Street. The Applicants propose to store a metal racking system for transfer of raw 
product into the facility at the site.  

 
An interim use permit is required under §1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which 
provides for the proposed outdoor storage in the C-2 General Commercial District.  

 
The Applicants represent: 

 
A metal racking system will be used to facilitate the transfer of product to/from an 
established use at the subject address. The racking system is to be twenty-five (25) feet 
in length, approximately four (4) feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in height. 

 
No other outdoor storage is proposed in conjunction with the use of the property. 

 
The racking system will be made of durable metal. 

 
Strack stated a public hearing notice had been published, posted, and to her knowledge, 
mailed as required by law. No comments for or against the proposal have been received at 
this time. She acknowledged a representative for the Applicant was in attendance at the 
meeting.  

 



Page 5 of 11 
 

 
Grundahl inquired as to how would an accessory pool would be regulated. Strack noted 
she would likely consider such a use as ancillary to the principal use. She noted regulations 
relating to pools were included in the code.  

 
Perry Forst testified in favor of amendment. He alluded to his testimony at the previous PC 
meeting regarding CUP standards requiring an adult provide supervision of animals and 
the length of time a dog could be barking prior to a nuisance being triggered e.g. one 
minute.  

 
Kemp noted she would prefer an adult be required to supervise animals out of doors. 
Hoernemann noted he didn’t have a problem with teenagers being included in the 
definition.  

 
Lagergren confirmed the PC would discuss specific conditions during the business portion 
of the meeting.  

 
Motion – Lagergren second Hoernemann to close the public hearing at 7:43 p.m. Approved 
5-0.  
 

5. Old Business. 
 

A. Conditional Use Permit: Accessory Auto Sales and Display at 180 Industrial Boulevard.  
 

Heher introduced the agenda item.  
 
Strack stated that a conditional use permit is requested by Citizen’s State Bank as the deed 
holder of the property at 180 Industrial Boulevard and Todd Miller as the proposed operator 
of an auto sales and display operation accessory to the existing principal use of the property 
as auto repair.  
 
Accessory auto sales and display are allowed under CUP in the B-I Business Industrial 
District. Two separate sets of review criteria existed in the code. The first applicable 
specifically to auto sales/display the second applicable to all conditional uses.  
 
Strack stated that under Section 1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(16) of the Code, outdoor auto sales 
and display were required to comply with four standards.  

 
First, the adequate parking was required. She noted the existing structure is 
approximately 3,600 square feet and is used for auto repair. Auto repair and/or sales uses 
require one (1) parking space for every five hundred (500) sf of floor area equating to 
seven (7) required spaces. Adequate off-street parking appears to exist for the proposed 
activity, provided used car display sales do not occupy the required parking spaces.    

 



Page 6 of 11 
 

Second, outdoor auto sales and display uses required all access drives, parking and 
storage areas shall be surfaced with concrete or bituminous with curb and gutter. She 
noted the existing parking lot is surfaced with bituminous and a curb is in place.  

 
A third requirement for outdoor auto sales and display uses requires lots to be screened 
from adjacent residential districts by buffer fence of adequate design or a planting buffer 
screen. Strack noted there is a large wetland to the east of the subject parcel. The wetland 
is zoned for residential use, however, the natural area is subject to protection under the 
Wetland Conservation Act and, therefore, unlikely to be used for residential purposes. 
Strack suggested the Commission may wish to discuss the need to require screening of 
potential overflow sales storage from the east property line (trail users).  

 
The last specific requirement for auto sales and display requires all used vehicles 
associated with the use:  

 
Shall be in an operable condition. 
 
Shall not be extensively damaged, with the damage including such things as 
broken or missing tires and wheels, motor, body parts, windows, drive train or 
transmission. 
 
Shall have a fair market value greater than the approximate value of the scrap 
in it 

 
These are proposed conditions if approval is recommended. 

 
Strack stated the other set of review criteria was applicable to any conditional use being 
considered. Those criteria required:  

 
The use to be consistent with goals, policies and objectives of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Strack noted existing and future use are consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and continued use of the property for commercial 
and industrial type uses.  
 
The use must also be consistent with the intent of the zoning code. Strack 
stated the proposed auto sales and display use is an allowed accessory use in 
the B-I District under a CUP. 
 
The use must not have an undue adverse impact on governmental facilities, 
utilities, services or existing or proposed improvements. Strack stated the 
proposed outdoor storage will not impact government facilities, utilities, 
services, or existing improvements as no changes to the existing lot, structure, 
or parking facility are proposed, except for striping of the parking lot.  
 



Page 7 of 11 
 

The use must not adversely impact on the public’s health, safety or welfare. 
Strack reiterated, no changes are proposed to the existing property, structure, 
or parking facility. 
 
The use must not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in 
the immediate vicinity for the purpose already permitted, nor substantially 
diminish and impair property values within the neighborhood. Strack opined 
the nature of the use is not substantially altered by the proposed accessory 
auto sales and display operation.  
 

Strack stated if the Planning Commission looked favorably on the request she would 
recommend the conditions as represented in her staff memo, including, but not limited to: 

 
The approved accessory use be only for outdoor automobile sales/display and 
applicable only to the property at 180 Industrial Boulevard. 
 
An identified maximum number of autos be displayed for sale at one time. At 
least seven (7) parking spaces in the parking lot in front of the building shall be 
reserved for customer parking. All vehicles stored outdoors on the site at one 
time, including those being repaired, shall not exceed a specified number of 
vehicles.  
 
All used vehicles associated with the used automobile sales/display shall 
comply with the following standards:  

 
Shall be in an operable condition. 
 
Shall not be extensively damaged, with the damage including such 
things as broken or missing tires and wheels, motor, body parts, 
windows, drive train or transmission. 
 
Shall have a fair market value greater than the approximate value of 
the scrap in it 

 
Used automobiles on sale and display are limited to passenger automobiles. 
Commercial weight vehicles, agricultural equipment, trailers, recreational 
vehicles, sport utility vehicles, non-motorized items and the like are prohibited.  
 
All parking for the principal and accessory use shall occur off-street. Additional 
overflow parking for used vehicle display sales may occur in the rear parking 
area. 
 
The Applicant or Property Owner shall supply the City evidence of an auto 
dealer’s license.  
 
Any signage shall require issuance of a sign permit. 
 



Page 8 of 11 
 

Any changes to outdoor lighting shall require approval from the City.  
 

Heher asked Miller if he would be adding lights in the rear storage area. Miller stated he 
has no plans for lighting the rear parking area. Heher confirmed Miller had reviewed the 
staff report and recommendations. Miller confirmed. Heher asked Miller to comment on 
the maximum number of vehicles stored on site at one time. Miller suggested forty total 
vehicles.  
 
Heher stated there is a partial berm and some existing vegetation in the rear yard he noted 
pictures of the site. Kemp opined existing screening appears to be adequate.  
 
Heher suggested the maximum number of vehicles allowed to be store on site at one time 
be capped at 40 vehicles. He concurred with Kemp regarding screening.  
 
Kemp and Grundahl supported Heher’s suggestions.  
 
Motion – Lagergren to recommend approval provided the total vehicles stored on site be 
capped at 40 and accept existing vegetation as sufficient. Second Kemp. Approved 5-0.  

 
 

B. Interim Use Permit: Outdoor Storage at 508 Merger Street.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 
Strack noted the Applicants propose to store a metal racking system for transfer of raw 
product into the facility outdoors at the site. An interim use permit is required under 
§1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which provides for the proposed outdoor storage in 
the C-2 General Commercial District.  
 
Strack noted Section 1210.06 (B) of the Code specified standards for outdoor storage, 
including: 
 

All outdoor storage yards be completely screened from roads or developed areas 
with a solid fence or wall 6 feet or more in height, maintained in good condition, 
and screened with suitable planting. 
 
And that no un-screened outdoor storage yard can be closer than 500 feet to an 
existing highway, or closer than 100 feet to any other City streets.  

  
Strack opined “storage yards” are not defined in the Code; presumably storage yards are 
more than just one piece of equipment. She suggested the Planning Commission 
determine whether or not a storage rack constitutes a storage yard. If so, the standards for 
screening should apply.  

 
The standards of Section 1210.07 require IUP’s to meet review requirements of Section 
1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(16) of the code relating to general criteria for approval of 
Conditional Use Permits. 







2/26/2017 180 Industrial Blvd - Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/place/180+Industrial+Blvd,+Norwood+Young+America,+MN+55397/@44.7722016,-93.9152956,151m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x87f5eff043ce9c37:0xd33f5023758efb00!8m2!3d44.... 1/2

Imagery ©2017 Google, Map data ©2017 Google 50 ft 

180 Industrial Blvd



Carver County GIS, 2014 P ictometry International

²
This map was created using Carver County's Geographic Information Systems (GIS), it is  a compilation of information and data from various City, County, State, and Federal offices. This map is not a surveyed
or legally recorded map and is intended to be used as a reference. Carver County is not responsible for any  inaccuracies contained herein.

Map Date: 2/26/2017



Carver County GIS, 2014 P ictometry International

²
This map was created using Carver County's Geographic Information Systems (GIS), it is  a compilation of information and data from various City, County, State, and Federal offices. This map is not a surveyed
or legally recorded map and is intended to be used as a reference. Carver County is not responsible for any  inaccuracies contained herein.

Map Date: 2/26/2017





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
 Members of the City Council 

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Strack Consulting LLC 
 
Date: March 27, 2017 
 
Re: Interim Use Permit: Outdoor Storage – 508 North Merger Street 
 

 
Applicants:   Joel Buttenhoff, Faxon RD Investors LLC (Property Owner) 

Tim Conyard, d.b.a. Cedar Direct Minnesota (Lessee) 
 
Subject Property Address: 508 North Merger Street  
 
Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 1, YA Addition  
 
Property ID: #588490010 
 
Zoning Class: C-2 General Commercial District 
 
Request: Interim use permit to allow outdoor storage 
 
Background 
Joel Buettenhoff (Property Owner) and Tim Conyard (Lessee) have applied for an interim use permit in 
conjunction with proposed outdoor storage (of racking system) at 508 North Merger Street. The Applicants 
propose to store a metal racking system out of doors on the site. The racking system will be used for staging 
and transfer of raw product into the facility outdoors at the site. Application materials and a map of the site are 
attached for consideration/information.  
  
 
An interim use permit is required under §1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which provides for the proposed 
outdoor storage in the C-2 General Commercial District.  
 
The Applicants represent: 
 

• A metal racking system will be used to facilitate the transfer of product to/from an established use at 
the subject address. The racking system is to be twenty-five (25) feet in length, approximately four (4) 
feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in height. 

 
• No other outdoor storage is proposed in conjunction with the use of the property. 

 
• The racking system will be made of durable metal. 

 
Hearing Requirements  
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the matter at a regular meeting March 21st. Minutes from 
the meeting are attached for Council information.  



Examination of Code Requirements 
NYA City Code requirements applicable to this Conditional Use Permit Request are itemized below; consulting 
staff comments are illustrated in red bold, italic type face.  
 
1210.06 (B) Specific Standards for Outdoor Storage 
 
Conditions for outdoor storage yards are prescribed under Section 1210.06(B) of the Code. Specifically the 
standards require: 
 

1. All outdoor storage yards shall be completely screened from roads or developed areas with a solid 
fence or wall 6 feet or more in height, maintained in good condition, and screened with suitable 
planting. 

 
2. No un-screened outdoor storage yards established after the effective date of this Chapter shall be 

located closer than 500 feet to existing State and Federal roads, nor closer than 100 feet to any 
other City streets.  

  
“Storage yards” are not defined in the Code. The Planning Commission finds more than one piece of 
equipment would presumably constitute a storage yard.  
 
1210.07 Interim Use Permits Conditions for Approval.  
IUP’s must meet Requirements of 1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(16): General Criteria for Approval of Conditional Use 
Permits. 
 

1. The use is consistent with goals, policies and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. 
DISCUSSION: The existing and future use are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
2. The use is consistent with the intent of this Ordinance. DISCUSSION: The proposed use is an 

allowed as an interim use in the C-2 District under an IUP. 
 

3. The use does not have an undue adverse impact on governmental facilities, utilities, services or 
existing or proposed improvements. DISCUSSION: The proposed outdoor storage will not 
impact government facilities, utilities, services, or existing improvements. No changes to 
the existing lot, structure, or parking facility are proposed.  
 

4. The use does not have an undue adverse impact on the public health, safety or welfare. 
DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing property, structure, or parking facility are 
proposed. 
 

5. The use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 
for the purpose already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood. DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing property, structure, or parking 
facility are proposed. 
 

6. The use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding 
property for uses permitted in the district. DISCUSSION: The proposed outdoor storage will 
not impede orderly development and improvement of surrounding properties.  

 
7. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and necessary facilities have been or will be provided. 

DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing property, structure, or parking facility are 
proposed. 
 

8. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide for vehicular and pedestrian safety 
and convenience to, from and within the site. DISCUSSION: No changes to the existing 
property, structure, or parking facility are proposed.  
 



9. The use meets all of the performance criteria requirements as established in Section 
1245.01 of this chapter. DISCUSSION: No new construction is contemplated at this time.  
 

10. The use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it 
is located. DISCUSSION: No new construction is contemplated.  

 
 
PC Recommendation 
Following the hearing and discussion the Planning Commission approved a motion recommending the City 
Council approve interim use permit with the following conditions: 
 

1. The approved interim use permit is applicable to the property addressed as 508 Norther Merger Street 
and shall be limited to a metal racking system with the approximate dimensions of: twenty-five (25) 
feet in length, approximately four (4) feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in height 
 

2. A maximum of one (1) racking system is allowed.  
 

3. The racking system is as a temporary staging area and not a ‘storage yard’ as referenced in Section 
1210.06 (B) of the Code. 
 

4. This approval shall expire one year after date of approval unless the Applicants have commenced 
operation of the Use on-site.  
 

5. This permit is subject to all applicable codes, regulations and ordinances, and violation thereof shall 
be grounds for revocation. 
 

6. The permit shall be subject to annual inspection and audit by the City.  
 

7. The City may revoke the IUP upon violation of the conditional use permit standards in the Zoning 
Ordinance or violation of the conditions of this resolution, subject to the requirements of Section 
1210.06, Subd. 5 “Revocation of Conditional Use Permits” of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

8. The interim use permitted under this Resolution shall be revoked if the Use ceases for more than 12 
consecutive months. 
 

Action 
Following discussion and review a MOTION to approve or deny the request is in order. A sample 
RESOLUTION is attached for consideration.  
 



Page 3 of 11 
 

Lagergren asked Miller how many cars he anticipated would be housed on site. Miller 
suggested 40 automobiles. Lagergren inquired as to how many vehicles could be parked in 
the existing lot to the front of the building. Schlechter estimated 25 stalls.  
 
Strack stated off-street parking stall requirements for auto dealer and repair shops apply as 
well. 
 
Kemp inquired as to whether or not a previous site plan illustrating the number of parking 
spots available in front of the building existed. Strack noted she was not aware of one, she 
further stated that based on stall size and aisle width requirements the front parking lot area 
could accommodate an estimated 15 parking spaces.  
 
Miller suggested he would likely park five used cars in the front parking lot and store the 
remainder in the rear yard.  
 
Heher asked for other comments for or against the proposed conditional use permit.   

 
Motion – Grundahl, Second Kemp to close the public hearing at 7:20 p.m. Approved 5-0.  
 
 

B. Interim Use Permit: Outdoor Storage at 508 Merger Street  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:21 p.m.   
 
Strack noted Joel Buettenhoff (Property Owner) and Tim Conyard (Lessee) have applied 
for an interim use permit in conjunction with proposed outdoor storage at 508 North 
Merger Street. The Applicants propose to store a metal racking system for transfer of raw 
product into the facility at the site.  

 
An interim use permit is required under §1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which 
provides for the proposed outdoor storage in the C-2 General Commercial District.  

 
The Applicants represent: 

 
A metal racking system will be used to facilitate the transfer of product to/from an 
established use at the subject address. The racking system is to be twenty-five (25) feet 
in length, approximately four (4) feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in height. 

 
No other outdoor storage is proposed in conjunction with the use of the property. 

 
The racking system will be made of durable metal. 

 
Strack stated a public hearing notice had been published, posted, and to her knowledge, 
mailed as required by law. No comments for or against the proposal have been received at 
this time. She acknowledged a representative for the Applicant was in attendance at the 
meeting.  

 



Page 4 of 11 
 

Heher referenced comments in the staff memo relating to storage yard adjacent to highways 
requiring screening. Strack acknowledged the comments noting discussion regarding the 
definition of a storage yard was requested. 

 
Lagergren asked Conyard where the storage rack would be located. Strack noted to the 
west side of the building adjacent to termination of Merger Street, it was already on site.  

 
Lagergren asked Conyard to explain how the storage rack would be used. Conyard noted 
he has cedar boards shipped in to the site. The racking would be used to inventory incoming 
boards prior to moving them inside the facility.  

 
Kemp clarified the use was for staging product as opposed to storing it on site. Conyard 
confirmed that was the case, unless a shipment occurred late in the day in which case the 
product could be stored overnight in the racking.  

 
Perry Forst stated he did not have an issue with this request.  

 
Grundahl inquired as to whether or not either of the Gahl’s had comments. Discussion 
regarding concrete cast off materials and storage pods placed out of doors on the site at this 
time ensued. The materials are temporarily stored out of doors during a transition period 
which includes interior remodeling. 

 
Motion – Lagergren second Grundahl to close the public hearing at 7:34 p.m. Approved 5-
0.  
 
 

C. Draft Ordinance: Amending C-2, C-3, and B-I to Allow Animal Care as a Conditional Use.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:34 p.m.   
 
Strack noted the Planning Commission has been discussing animal care, including pet 
daycare, as an allowable use in certain zoning classifications. An ordinance has been 
drafted following review of sample codes in other communities and discussion at several 
meetings. At this time veterinary clinics and animal hospitals are allowed under 
conditional use permit in the C-2 District. No other types of animal care, including pet 
daycare, training, boarding, shelter, etc. are allowed at this time. 

 
The PC proposes to allow veterinary clinics, animal care, animal shelters, pet daycare, pet 
training, and animal hospitals as conditional uses in the C-2 General Commercial, C-3 
Downtown, and B-I Business Industrial Districts. In addition the PC proposes to enact 
specific standards relating to such conditional use permits including those related to: 
noise, sanitation, adequate space, and ventilation.  

 
A hearing notice has been published and posted. No comments for or against the 
proposed ordinance have been received. The Ordinance was developed pursuant to a 
request for consideration by a member of the public. 



Page 8 of 11 
 

Any changes to outdoor lighting shall require approval from the City.  
 

Heher asked Miller if he would be adding lights in the rear storage area. Miller stated he 
has no plans for lighting the rear parking area. Heher confirmed Miller had reviewed the 
staff report and recommendations. Miller confirmed. Heher asked Miller to comment on 
the maximum number of vehicles stored on site at one time. Miller suggested forty total 
vehicles.  
 
Heher stated there is a partial berm and some existing vegetation in the rear yard he noted 
pictures of the site. Kemp opined existing screening appears to be adequate.  
 
Heher suggested the maximum number of vehicles allowed to be store on site at one time 
be capped at 40 vehicles. He concurred with Kemp regarding screening.  
 
Kemp and Grundahl supported Heher’s suggestions.  
 
Motion – Lagergren to recommend approval provided the total vehicles stored on site be 
capped at 40 and accept existing vegetation as sufficient. Second Kemp. Approved 5-0.  

 
 

B. Interim Use Permit: Outdoor Storage at 508 Merger Street.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 
Strack noted the Applicants propose to store a metal racking system for transfer of raw 
product into the facility outdoors at the site. An interim use permit is required under 
§1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which provides for the proposed outdoor storage in 
the C-2 General Commercial District.  
 
Strack noted Section 1210.06 (B) of the Code specified standards for outdoor storage, 
including: 
 

All outdoor storage yards be completely screened from roads or developed areas 
with a solid fence or wall 6 feet or more in height, maintained in good condition, 
and screened with suitable planting. 
 
And that no un-screened outdoor storage yard can be closer than 500 feet to an 
existing highway, or closer than 100 feet to any other City streets.  

  
Strack opined “storage yards” are not defined in the Code; presumably storage yards are 
more than just one piece of equipment. She suggested the Planning Commission 
determine whether or not a storage rack constitutes a storage yard. If so, the standards for 
screening should apply.  

 
The standards of Section 1210.07 require IUP’s to meet review requirements of Section 
1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(16) of the code relating to general criteria for approval of 
Conditional Use Permits. 



Page 9 of 11 
 

 
No new construction, development, or redevelopment is contemplated just the placement 
of a storage rack in the parking lot.  
 
Strack stated that if approval of the interim use permit is contemplated she would suggest 
including conditions addressed in her staff memo. Those condition include, but are not 
limited to: 

 
The approved interim use permit is applicable to the property addressed as 508 
Norther Merger Street and shall be limited to a metal racking system with the 
approximate dimensions of: twenty-five (25) feet in length, approximately four (4) 
feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in height 
 
A maximum of one (1) racking system is allowed.  
 
The Commission defines the racking system as a temporary staging area and not a 
‘storage yard’ as referenced in Section 1210.06 (B) of the Code. 

 
Discussion regarding storage yard verses the storage of outdoor equipment ensued.  
 
Kemp inquired as to whether or not the DOT limits storage in proximity of right of ways. 
Strack noted the DOT regulates activities within rights of way.   

 
Heher noted there is a large degree of slope from building to street. He further opined 
requiring a fence seems counterproductive in that it is only one piece of equipment.  

 
Lagergren opined the one piece of equipment did not constitute a storage yard.  

 
Forst noted the staging rack seems to function more like a loading dock than a storage yard.  

 
Conyard opined the racking system is a staging area.   

 
Lagergren opined it was a temporary staging area.  

 
Motion – Lagergren, second Kemp to recommend the City Council approve an interim use 
permit for outdoor storage at 508 Merger Street based on recommended conditions. 
Approved 5-0.  

 
 

C. Draft Ordinance: Amending C-2, C-3, and B-I to Allow Animal Care as Conditional Use.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 
Strack stated the PC proposes to allow veterinary clinics, animal care, animal shelters, pet 
daycare, pet training, and animal hospitals as conditional uses in the C-2 General 
Commercial, C-3 Downtown, and B-I Business Industrial Districts. In addition the PC 

















Carver County GIS, 2014 P ictometry International

²
This map was created using Carver County's Geographic Information Systems (GIS), it is  a compilation of information and data from various City, County, State, and Federal offices. This map is not a surveyed
or legally recorded map and is intended to be used as a reference. Carver County is not responsible for any  inaccuracies contained herein.

Map Date: 2/26/2017



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
 Members of the City Council 

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Strack Consulting LLC 
 
Date: March 27, 2017 
 
Re: Proposed Ordinance: Animal Care in C-2, C-3, and B-I Districts   
 

 
The Planning Commission has been discussing animal care, including pet daycare, as an allowable use in 
certain zoning classifications. Discussion was initiated in January following a public inquiry.  
 
An ordinance has been drafted following review of sample codes in other communities and discussion at 
several meetings. At this time veterinary clinics and animal hospitals are allowed under conditional use 
permit in the C-2 District. No other types of animal care, including pet daycare, training, boarding, shelter, 
etc. are allowed at this time. 
 
The draft Ordinance proposes to allow veterinary clinics, animal care, animal shelters, pet daycare, pet 
training, and animal hospitals as conditional uses in the C-2 General Commercial, C-3 Downtown, and B-I 
Business Industrial Districts. In addition, if approved, the code amendment would enact specific standards 
relating to conditional use permits for animal care, including standards related to: noise, sanitation, adequate 
space, and ventilation.  
 
A hearing notice was published and posted. The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the code 
amendment on March 21st. Following the hearing the PC discussed the amendment and approved a motion 
recommending the City Council approve the attached Ordinance.  
 
Please find a copy of draft PC minutes attached for your information.  
 
ACTION 
The attached Ordinance is offered for consideration by the City Council. If approved, a summary publication 
notice is attached for consideration.  



Page 4 of 11 
 

Heher referenced comments in the staff memo relating to storage yard adjacent to highways 
requiring screening. Strack acknowledged the comments noting discussion regarding the 
definition of a storage yard was requested. 

 
Lagergren asked Conyard where the storage rack would be located. Strack noted to the 
west side of the building adjacent to termination of Merger Street, it was already on site.  

 
Lagergren asked Conyard to explain how the storage rack would be used. Conyard noted 
he has cedar boards shipped in to the site. The racking would be used to inventory incoming 
boards prior to moving them inside the facility.  

 
Kemp clarified the use was for staging product as opposed to storing it on site. Conyard 
confirmed that was the case, unless a shipment occurred late in the day in which case the 
product could be stored overnight in the racking.  

 
Perry Forst stated he did not have an issue with this request.  

 
Grundahl inquired as to whether or not either of the Gahl’s had comments. Discussion 
regarding concrete cast off materials and storage pods placed out of doors on the site at this 
time ensued. The materials are temporarily stored out of doors during a transition period 
which includes interior remodeling. 

 
Motion – Lagergren second Grundahl to close the public hearing at 7:34 p.m. Approved 5-
0.  
 
 

C. Draft Ordinance: Amending C-2, C-3, and B-I to Allow Animal Care as a Conditional Use.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:34 p.m.   
 
Strack noted the Planning Commission has been discussing animal care, including pet 
daycare, as an allowable use in certain zoning classifications. An ordinance has been 
drafted following review of sample codes in other communities and discussion at several 
meetings. At this time veterinary clinics and animal hospitals are allowed under 
conditional use permit in the C-2 District. No other types of animal care, including pet 
daycare, training, boarding, shelter, etc. are allowed at this time. 

 
The PC proposes to allow veterinary clinics, animal care, animal shelters, pet daycare, pet 
training, and animal hospitals as conditional uses in the C-2 General Commercial, C-3 
Downtown, and B-I Business Industrial Districts. In addition the PC proposes to enact 
specific standards relating to such conditional use permits including those related to: 
noise, sanitation, adequate space, and ventilation.  

 
A hearing notice has been published and posted. No comments for or against the 
proposed ordinance have been received. The Ordinance was developed pursuant to a 
request for consideration by a member of the public. 



Page 5 of 11 
 

 
Grundahl inquired as to how would an accessory pool would be regulated. Strack noted 
she would likely consider such a use as ancillary to the principal use. She noted regulations 
relating to pools were included in the code.  

 
Perry Forst testified in favor of amendment. He alluded to his testimony at the previous PC 
meeting regarding CUP standards requiring an adult provide supervision of animals and 
the length of time a dog could be barking prior to a nuisance being triggered e.g. one 
minute.  

 
Kemp noted she would prefer an adult be required to supervise animals out of doors. 
Hoernemann noted he didn’t have a problem with teenagers being included in the 
definition.  

 
Lagergren confirmed the PC would discuss specific conditions during the business portion 
of the meeting.  

 
Motion – Lagergren second Hoernemann to close the public hearing at 7:43 p.m. Approved 
5-0.  
 

5. Old Business. 
 

A. Conditional Use Permit: Accessory Auto Sales and Display at 180 Industrial Boulevard.  
 

Heher introduced the agenda item.  
 
Strack stated that a conditional use permit is requested by Citizen’s State Bank as the deed 
holder of the property at 180 Industrial Boulevard and Todd Miller as the proposed operator 
of an auto sales and display operation accessory to the existing principal use of the property 
as auto repair.  
 
Accessory auto sales and display are allowed under CUP in the B-I Business Industrial 
District. Two separate sets of review criteria existed in the code. The first applicable 
specifically to auto sales/display the second applicable to all conditional uses.  
 
Strack stated that under Section 1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(16) of the Code, outdoor auto sales 
and display were required to comply with four standards.  

 
First, the adequate parking was required. She noted the existing structure is 
approximately 3,600 square feet and is used for auto repair. Auto repair and/or sales uses 
require one (1) parking space for every five hundred (500) sf of floor area equating to 
seven (7) required spaces. Adequate off-street parking appears to exist for the proposed 
activity, provided used car display sales do not occupy the required parking spaces.    

 



Page 9 of 11 
 

 
No new construction, development, or redevelopment is contemplated just the placement 
of a storage rack in the parking lot.  
 
Strack stated that if approval of the interim use permit is contemplated she would suggest 
including conditions addressed in her staff memo. Those condition include, but are not 
limited to: 

 
The approved interim use permit is applicable to the property addressed as 508 
Norther Merger Street and shall be limited to a metal racking system with the 
approximate dimensions of: twenty-five (25) feet in length, approximately four (4) 
feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in height 
 
A maximum of one (1) racking system is allowed.  
 
The Commission defines the racking system as a temporary staging area and not a 
‘storage yard’ as referenced in Section 1210.06 (B) of the Code. 

 
Discussion regarding storage yard verses the storage of outdoor equipment ensued.  
 
Kemp inquired as to whether or not the DOT limits storage in proximity of right of ways. 
Strack noted the DOT regulates activities within rights of way.   

 
Heher noted there is a large degree of slope from building to street. He further opined 
requiring a fence seems counterproductive in that it is only one piece of equipment.  

 
Lagergren opined the one piece of equipment did not constitute a storage yard.  

 
Forst noted the staging rack seems to function more like a loading dock than a storage yard.  

 
Conyard opined the racking system is a staging area.   

 
Lagergren opined it was a temporary staging area.  

 
Motion – Lagergren, second Kemp to recommend the City Council approve an interim use 
permit for outdoor storage at 508 Merger Street based on recommended conditions. 
Approved 5-0.  

 
 

C. Draft Ordinance: Amending C-2, C-3, and B-I to Allow Animal Care as Conditional Use.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 
Strack stated the PC proposes to allow veterinary clinics, animal care, animal shelters, pet 
daycare, pet training, and animal hospitals as conditional uses in the C-2 General 
Commercial, C-3 Downtown, and B-I Business Industrial Districts. In addition the PC 



Page 10 of 11 
 

proposes to enact specific standards relating to such conditional use permits including 
those related to: noise, sanitation, adequate space, and ventilation.  

 
The full text of the proposed amendment is included in the packet.  
 
Heher requested discussion regarding the age of supervisors of animals.  
 
Lagergren stated he didn’t have a problem with changing adult to employee in condition 
A. He preferred retaining a specific length of time for barking dogs.  
 
Helget noted he is familiar with other language in codes requiring a ‘responsible 
employee’. Lagergren supported the language.  
 
Helget further noted barking dog complaints require City officials catch the dog in the 
act. The idea behind the standard is have to prove a violation exists.  
 
Helget requested a slight adjustment of language on page two of the draft. 
 
Motion – Lagergren, to recommend the Council approve the language for animal care in 
the C-2, C-3, and B-I Districts. Second by Kemp. Motion carried 5-0.  

 
 
D. Regular Planning Commission Meeting Date and Time.  

 
Heher introduced the agenda item noting previous discussion about meeting on the first 
Tuesday of the month at six p.m. He noted a simple motion was sufficient to change the 
date. Helget confirmed a motion was sufficient.  
 
Motion – Lagergren to change the regular meeting date and time to first Tuesday of the 
month at six p.m. effective May 2nd 2017. Second, Hoernemann. All in favor.  

 
 

6. New Business. 
 
Helget noted a special joint session was scheduled for Wednesday April 19th at 6:30 p.m. The 
purpose of meeting is to talk about downtown uses and redevelopment potential. Council, EDC, 
Chamber of Commerce, and Planning Commission were invited to the joint session.   
 
 
7. Commissioner Reports – Building Permit Report. 
 
Grundahl thanked Chairperson Heher for filling in for him at a Council meeting.  
 
Lagergren stated he attended the previous Council meeting wherein branding was biggest topic of 
discussion.  
 
















	March 27, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. Work Session; followed by EDA / City Council Meetings
	NYA17_CC_Liberty_Street_Partial_Vacation.pdf
	NYA17_MEM_CC_Liberty_St_Partial_Vacation_Consider_Petition
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner
	BACKGROUND
	A section of unimproved Liberty Street lies between Elm Street West and the railway in the 500 Block of Elm Street West. The public street segment is approximately 66 feet in width and 450 feet in length. An east-west public alley intersects Liberty S...
	The holder of a purchase agreement and the fee owners at 524 Elm Street West and adjacent property owners Peter and Michelle Luskey and Marilyn Franck have petitioned for a partial vacation of the eastern half of Liberty Street. The partial vacation w...
	Please find attached the following:
	1. A petition for partial street vacation
	2. A survey and legal description of the proposed vacation
	3. An area map of the subject property
	4. Resolution calling for a public hearing
	Representations by Applicant:
	 The vacation of an approximate 1,054 sf of unimproved Progress Street (scalene triangle in shape) is proposed.
	 A certificate of survey has been obtained and the survey has been used to demonstrate a proposed partial street vacation.
	 The furthest point of projection into the unimproved right of way proposed for vacation is 17 feet (portion of eastern half of public street ROW and western boundary of subject lot).
	 The garage was constructed in the public easement decades ago.
	 Clear title to the subject property is not achievable but for the vacation request or removal of the attached garage.
	 The encroachment results from common perception in the vicinity of the property that lots in the 500 block of Elm Street West are oriented perpendicular to Elm Street as opposed to intersecting but not perpendicular to the street. As a result encroa...


	Application
	Map

	NYA17_CC_Packet_CUP_Auto_Sales_180_Industrial_Blvd.pdf
	NYA17_MEM_CC_Auto_Sales_Display_180_Industrial_Blvd_Miller
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Strack Consulting LLC
	BACKGROUND
	A conditional use permit application and sketch have submitted for review by the City of Norwood Young America in conjunction with proposed outdoor auto sales and display as an accessory use at 180 Industrial Boulevard. The application materials and a...
	A conditional use permit is required under §1230.11, Subd. 4 of the City Code which provides for the proposed use in the B-I Business Industrial District.
	The Applicants (i.e. Property Owner and Property Lessee) propose automobile sales/display as an accessory use to an existing established auto repair use.
	The Applicants represent:
	 The principal use of the property is auto repair and will remain auto repair.
	 The proposed accessory use is outdoor sales/display of used automobiles.
	 The proposed accessory use shall occupy a dedicated auto sales office within the principal structure.
	 No structural changes to the principal structure are proposed.
	 Used vehicles for sale are to occupy a portion of the parking lot in the front of the building. Additional overflow parking for used vehicle display sales may be stored in the rear (gravel) parking area.
	Hearing Requirements

	Consideration of the CUP request is kindly requested. A sample RESOLUTION is attached for consideration.
	ATTACHMENTS
	 Planning Commission (draft) minutes
	 CUP Application
	 Sample Resolution

	Draft Meeting Minutes Excerpt
	Attachments
	Application
	Google map of site with parking smaller file
	Map of Site
	Map with Parking Highlighted 5,200 sf
	Survey of property 


	NYA17_CC_Packet_IUP_Cedar_Direct_508_Merger_St.pdf
	NYA17_MEM_CC_IUP_Outdoor_Storage_508_Merger_Cedar_Direct
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Strack Consulting LLC
	Background
	Joel Buettenhoff (Property Owner) and Tim Conyard (Lessee) have applied for an interim use permit in conjunction with proposed outdoor storage (of racking system) at 508 North Merger Street. The Applicants propose to store a metal racking system out o...
	An interim use permit is required under §1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which provides for the proposed outdoor storage in the C-2 General Commercial District.
	The Applicants represent:
	 A metal racking system will be used to facilitate the transfer of product to/from an established use at the subject address. The racking system is to be twenty-five (25) feet in length, approximately four (4) feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in ...
	 No other outdoor storage is proposed in conjunction with the use of the property.
	 The racking system will be made of durable metal.
	Hearing Requirements
	The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the matter at a regular meeting March 21st. Minutes from the meeting are attached for Council information.

	Following discussion and review a MOTION to approve or deny the request is in order. A sample RESOLUTION is attached for consideration.

	Draft PC meeting minutes excerpt
	3.  Approval of Minutes from the Regular Meeting February 22, 2017 and Work Session of March 7, 2017.
	Strack noted Joel Buettenhoff (Property Owner) and Tim Conyard (Lessee) have applied for an interim use permit in conjunction with proposed outdoor storage at 508 North Merger Street. The Applicants propose to store a metal racking system for transfer...
	An interim use permit is required under §1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which provides for the proposed outdoor storage in the C-2 General Commercial District.
	The Applicants represent:
	A metal racking system will be used to facilitate the transfer of product to/from an established use at the subject address. The racking system is to be twenty-five (25) feet in length, approximately four (4) feet in depth, and sixteen (16) feet in he...
	No other outdoor storage is proposed in conjunction with the use of the property.
	The racking system will be made of durable metal.
	Strack noted the Applicants propose to store a metal racking system for transfer of raw product into the facility outdoors at the site. An interim use permit is required under §1230.09, Subd. 5(A) of the City Code which provides for the proposed outdo...


	Application
	Illustrations submitted with Applicatin
	20170213174758114
	Cantilever Rack - Interlake Structural
	Cantilever Stock 1
	TYP CANTILEVER ASSY VIEWS

	Site Map

	NYA17_CC_Packet_Dog_Daycare.pdf
	NYA17_MEM_CC_ORD_Animal_Care
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Strack Consulting LLC

	PC meeting minutes draft excerpt




